
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 15 JULY 2021 

Time: 9.30 am 

Venue: VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING (ACCESSIBLE REMOTELY) 

 
Members: Professor Geoffrey Crossick 

(Chairman) 
Randall Anderson (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Costigan 
 

Dr Paula Haynes 
Herington 
Andrew Mayer 
 

 
 
Enquiries: julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

Accessing the virtual public meeting 
 

Members of the public can observe this virtual public meeting at the below link: 
https://youtu.be/-uoPqex12XY   

 
This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical 
location. A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the 
end of the public meeting for up to one municipal year. Please note: Online meeting 
recordings do not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are 
available on the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the 
discretion of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material. 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 
 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/-uoPqex12XY


2 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 26 April 
2021. 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
4. DRAFT WORKPLAN FOR THE COMMITTEE 
 

 Members are asked to consider and comment on the draft workplan. 
 For Discussion 
 (Pages 11 - 12) 

 
5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 

 Report of the Head of Audit and  Risk Management. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 13 - 36) 

 
6. CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND 

STRATEGY 2021 
 

 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 37 - 70) 

 
7. SAFEGUARDING ASSURANCE 
 

 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 
Please see a non-public appendix at agenda item 12. 

 For Information 
 (Pages 71 - 74) 

 
8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

  
 

Part 2 - Non Public Agenda 
 
11. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
 

 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 26th April 2021. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 75 - 78) 

 
12. SAFEGUARDING ASSURANCE (NON PUBLIC APPENDIX) 
 

 To be read in conjunction with agenda item 7. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 79 - 84) 

 
13. RISK REGISTER 
 

 Report of the Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 85 - 124) 

 
14. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA 

 
Monday, 26 April 2021  

 
Minutes of the meeting streamed to You Tube at 10.00 am 

Please note that the recording will be available for one year from the date of the meeting 

https://youtu.be/DovSaw_CMdw 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Professor Geoffrey Crossick (Chairman) 
Randall Anderson (Deputy Chairman) 
John Chapman 
 

Christopher Costigan 
Michael Herington 
 

 
In Attendance 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Graham Packham 
 
Officers: 
Lynne Williams - Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama 

Jonathan Vaughan - Guildhall School of Music & Drama 

Katharine Lewis - Guildhall School of Music and Drama 

Graeme Hood - Guildhall School of Music and Drama/Barbican 
Centre 

Jonathon Poyner - Guildhall School of Music and Drama/Barbican 
Centre 

Matthew Lock - Chamberlain's Department 

Julie Mayer - Town Clerk's Department 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies were received from Paula Haynes.  
 
Before commencing the business on the agenda, the Town Clerk explained that 
this was a meeting of the ‘past’ Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama, as it fell 
between the Annual Meeting of the Court and the first meeting of the Board of 
Governors for 2021/22.   
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations.  
 

3. PUBLIC MINUTES  
The public minutes of the meeting held on 22nd January 2021 were approved.  
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://youtu.be/DovSaw_CMdw


 
Matters arising 
At the last meeting, the Chairman had requested an update on 
internationalisation, as this is a key objective of the recovery plan. The Finance 
Officer advised that the School had been running a series of workshops, 
including internationalisation, looking at the  KPIs that would be used to deliver 
targets.  The Committee noted that a report was being prepared on the 
outcome of the workshops, and this would be shared with Internal Audit, in 
order to determine further actions required to review the strategy.   The 
Principal strongly recommended, and the Committee agreed, that a full review 
should be delayed until there was clarity in respect of the numbers of students 
expected to return. 
 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
During the discussion and questions, the following points were noted: 
 

a) In respect of the final joint report of the Guildhall School and Barbican on 
Facilities Management and Maintenance, the Chairman advised that 
whilst ‘13 Amber’ appeared high, management had agreed to all but 3 of 
the recommendations in full, and those 3 partially, and there were no 
significant issues.  The officer confirmed good progress in the transition 
to City contracts and that interim arrangements were in place, pending 
the new system.  A performance management issue in respect of the 
Engineering Team related to a risk exercise and not a HR process.  

 
b) A report had recently been presented to the Senior Management Team 

in respect of the detailed revised budget for 2021/22, and this had 
included the first year of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP).   The 
Committee noted that the recommendations made had been accepted.  
The Chairman asked if future reports’ management responses could 
indicate this clearly and, if a recommendation was partially or not 
accepted, then it should state the reasons.    

 
c) The Officer explained that the School was aiming to implement 12% 

savings, alongside seeking investments in new areas to generate 
income.  The Committee noted the observation in the report that 
weightings towards new income against cost reduction would increase 
risk.  The Committee nonetheless viewed the income-led approach as 
appropriate notwithstanding the level of risk. 

 
d) The report on Guildhall Young Artists would be ready to report to the 

next Committee meeting.  The officer advised that the audit report had 
been finalised recently and there had been a positive response from the 
School.   

 
Audit Plan for 2021/22 

e) The committee noted that, whilst this was somewhat fluid, the main 
components were Data Quality, Governance and the Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP).  The  Head of Audit and Risk Management 
explained that the next stage of the work on the MTFP would look at how 

Page 6



the plan was being implemented, and if it was possible to test some of 
the assumptions. 

 
 
 
Governance 

f) Whilst Governance was linked to the City of London Corporation’s 
Lisvane Review, the Head of Audit and Risk Management would need to 
provide independent assurance that governance arrangements in the 
School adhered to the relevant codes for higher education.  The 
Chairman expressed concern that, given the current fluidity in 
governance within the City of London Corporation, any review was likely 
to go out of date very quickly.  The Head of Audit and Risk Management 
explained that it would not be possible to give an opinion on the 
adequacy of arrangements and the internal control environment if work 
had not taken place.   However, the Committee noted that some of the 
work within the main Audit Plan for the City of London Corporation 
related to key financial controls and the wider IT aspects, and assurance 
from this work could be carried across to inform the basis of the Head of 
Audit’s Annual Opinion for the School.   

 
g) The Dean and Secretary confirmed that an internal academic review of 

governance was underway, looking at quality assurance.  The Chairman 
suggested that the Head of Audit and Risk Management and the School 
give further consideration as to how long it might be acceptable to delay 
the planned Internal Audit Review.   The Principal advised that the OfS is 
fully aware of the School’s situation, and the on-going discussions in 
respect of the Target Operating Model (TOM) and the Governance 
Review. The Committee concluded that, given the state of flux, it would 
not be practical to conduct a review at this time.    

 
h) The Chairman suggested that the next meeting should receive the Office 

for Students’ Conditions of Registration, so that it could briefly review 
them and identify any conditions that might cause concern and where 
further information was needed.    

Data quality 
i) The Head of Audit and Risk Management advised that the Kingston City 

Group had been approached to carry out this work, given their 
specialism in higher education, but they only had capacity for a specific 
period.  The Head of Audit and Risk Management suggested a rolling 
programme of work in relation to Data Quality, looking at specific returns 
within each review, rather than samples across a range of different 
returns.  This approach could have a fairly narrow scope but would be 
sufficient to provide assurance of integrity in terms of  process and 
systems used to capture and prepare the data for submission, and 
accommodate availability of staff at the School.    The Dean and 
Secretary agreed to work with the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
to set a timetable for starting the process, looking at a single area every 
year, and the possibility of engaging KCG this year.  The Chairman 
suggested that, once an area had been agreed and ready to take 

Page 7



forward, it could be approved under delegated authority, thereby 
avoiding further delays. 
 
RESOLVED, that – authority be delegated to the Town Clerk, in 
consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee (of the Board of Governors of the GSMD), 
to approve internal audits undertaken in respect of Data Quality, on a 
rolling programme.   

   
j) The Finance Officer advised that the School was now producing 31st  

March accounts for the Office for Students but the 6 - 7 month reporting 
deadlines still applied.  Therefore, the Annual Returns would be due at 
the of October, which was slightly earlier than usual.   The Head of Audit 
and Risk Management advised that there wouldn’t be an issue with a 
small gap in the workflow, and a note could be added to the accounts in 
respect of the need to synchronise the audit work. 

 
Data Futures 

k) The Dean and Secretary advised that this was still on the deferred list, 
as a result of government and OfS delays.   The Committee noted that 
Data Futures would replace the student record return, with effect from 
August 2022, but the filing requirements would apply later.  It was 
suggested that the best time for a review would be after the in-year trial, 
as this would determine whether the School was ready.  It was also 
noted that there could be further delays, and that Jan 2023 was likely to 
be the best time for an audit.   

 
The Two Live High Priority Recommendations 

l) The Committee noted that one of these now had a revised timescale, 
and the other, ‘Review of Student Affairs Service Provision’, had been 
under considerable pressure, and would justify a revised implementation 
timetable. The Dean and Secretary suggested October 2021, when 
Student Affairs were due to present their Annual Report for 2020/21.   
The Committee noted that the 2019/20 Review had been cancelled due 
to the pandemic. The Head of Audit and Risk Management agreed to the 
revised timetable, as it would only be possible to demonstrate 
implementation once the review had been reported.   

 
5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There were no urgent items.  
 

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 

Page 8



defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
as follows:- 
 

Item Paragraph 

8-11 3 

 
8. NON PUBLIC MINUTES  

The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 22nd January 2021 were 
approved.  
 

9. RISK REGISTER  
The Committee received a report of the Principal. 
 

10. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
There were no questions.  
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no urgent items.  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12 noon. 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School - Work Programme: 2021  
 

 

15 July 2021 7 September 2021 

(special meeting) 

9 November 2021  

 

January 2022 

(date tbc) 

April 2022 

(date tbc) 

Accounts: 
 
 
 
 

Accounts: 
 
Draft Accounts for the 
Guildhall School 
 

Accounts: 
 
 

Accounts: 
 
 

Accounts: 
 

Risk Management: 
 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 
 

Risk Management: 
 
No reports 

Risk Management 
 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 
 

Risk Management 
 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Risk Management 
 
Guildhall School Risk 
Management Update 

Internal Audit 
 
Internal Audit Update – 
Plan Delivery Status 

Internal Audit 
 
No reports 

Internal Audit 
 
Internal Audit Update – 
Plan Delivery Status 

Internal Audit  
 
Internal Audit Plan for 
2022/23 

Internal Audit 
 
Internal Audit Year 
End/Annual Report for 
2021/22 

 

Governance: 
 
 

Governance: 
 
Annual Report of the 
Committee   
 
OFS Return 

Governance: 
 
 

Governance: 
 
 

Governance: 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
Membership of the 
Committee  
(ahead of approval of the 
Board in May) 
 
 

External Inspections: 
 
TBC 
 

External Inspections: 
 
 

External Inspections: External Inspections: External Inspections: 

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 12



Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 
School of Music & Drama 

15/07/2021 
  

Subject: Internal Audit Update Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

N/A 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/A 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Head of Audit & Risk Management For Information 

Report author: Cirla Peall, Audit Manager 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report has been prepared to provide Members with an update in respect of 
Internal Audit activity related to the Guildhall School in relation to the 2021/22 
Internal Audit Plan.  The report also provides a summary of the findings of the last 
remaining element of the 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan, the final report for which was 
issued at the time of the April 2021 meeting of this Committee, although after 
circulation of papers   
 
As at the end of June 2021 there are no live red priority recommendations.  There 
are twenty-three open amber priority recommendations, two of which have revised 
target dates for implementation.  Prompt Internal Audit follow-up activity has been 
scheduled to enable the provision of a revised assurance opinion for each audit.  
 
 Recommendation(s)  

Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the report 

• Provide feedback in respect of recent revisions to the 2021-22 Audit Plan. 
 

 

Main Report 

Background 
 
1. This Committee receives regular updates in respect of delivery of Internal Audit 

work and the implementation of Audit recommendations.   
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2. A summary of outcomes is reported for finalised audit work i.e. where full 
management responses have been received and agreed, and there is a reminder 
of the scope of audit for any audits where draft reports have been issued and 
management responses are awaited.  
 

3. In terms of high priority recommendations, this report provides Members with the 
latest implementation position based upon information received from Guildhall 
School management and audit follow-up undertaken. 

 
Current Position 

Completed Audit Work 

Guildhall Young Artists 
 
4. This Audit was completed as part of the 20/21 Internal Audit Plan, with the final 

report issued in April 2021.  The objective of this audit was to provide assurance 
in respect of the adequacy of arrangements for: ensuring alignment of activity 
with strategy, safeguarding, administration, and maintenance of the general 
control environment. 
 

5. The audit provided moderate assurance with ten recommendations raised, as set 
out below. 

 

Recommendations Red Amber Green Total 

Number Made: 0 8 2 10 

 
6. Recommendation details are shown at Appendix 1.  All recommendations were 

agreed by management for implementation between May and mid-July 2021; 
Internal Audit follow-up has been scheduled to be undertaken promptly in July. 

 
Universities UK (UUK) Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 
 
7. Internal Audit was approached in May 2021 to undertake some urgent assurance 

work in respect of the UUK Code of Practice for the Management of Student 
Housing.  The Housing Act 2004 introduced licensing for houses of multiple 
occupations in England and Wales. Higher education institutions are exempted 
from licensing providing they sign up to the Code, which requires there to be an 
Internal Audit review of student accommodation management arrangements 
every three years. The School has previously made arrangements for these 
audits to be carried out independently of Internal Audit and it is understood that 
the last such audit was carried out by Mazars in 2017.  
 

8. Internal Audit noted that under the terms of the Code, the School is required to 
provide summary information to the UUK/ Guild HE Code Governance Board, 
including the relevant sections of auditors’ reports, management’s response and 
the timescale for addressing auditors’ recommendations.  UUK confirmed that an 
extension was granted in 2020 to the School, extending the deadline for 
submission of the UUK Code audit from 30th May 2020 to 30th April 2021. 

 

Page 14



9. The audit has been completed in respect of the mandatory elements of the Code 
and the necessary assurance report was submitted to UUK ahead of its Board 
meeting on 10th June 2021. A moderate assurance opinion has been provided 
with recommendations made as set out below.  A copy of the executive summary 
is provided at Appendix 2.  

 

Recommendations Red Amber Green Total 

Number Made: 0 7 3 10 

 
10. All ten recommendations have been accepted by management with target 

implementation dates ranging between June and September 2021.  Full 
recommendation details are included in Appendix 2. Internal Audit follow-up will 
be undertaken promptly in October 2021. 
 

11. The terms of reference for this audit included non-mandatory elements of the 
Code, intended to provide assurance that the School follows good management 
practice.  At the time of writing this report the necessary evidence has not been 
received in order to complete this element of the review and the outcome will be 
reported to this Committee post finalisation.   Members of the Committee should 
note that whilst an extension was granted for the recent submission, the audit 
cycle will remain unchanged and the next assurance report is required by 30th 
April 2023.  It is anticipated that the Internal Audit team will deliver this work 
going forwards rather than the School source this separately and so this is now 
added to the future Audit Plan. 

 
Audit Plan 2021-22 
 
12. The updated Audit Plan for 2021-22 is set out in Appendix 3 and reflects: 

 

• The previous request from this Committee to defer the audits of Governance 
and Data Futures to 2022-23.  

• The suggestions of this Committee as to potential areas of focus for phase 
two of the audit of the Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

• The requirement for the Head of Audit Annual Opinion to incorporate a 
statement in respect of Data Quality. 

• Addition of a Safeguarding audit in order to provide independent assurance in 
respect of the School’s arrangements; this has been provisionally scheduled 
for the 2021-22 academic year. 

• Addition, at the request of the School, of urgent assurance work in respect of 
Student Accommodation Management; this audit has been completed (as 
described above). 

 
13. Internal Audit will continue to liaise with School Management to agree the timing 

of remaining Plan delivery. 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 15



Live High Priority Recommendations 
 
14. Internal Audit follow-up is undertaken promptly once target timescales have been 

reached and a revised assurance opinion is provided on the basis of the follow-
up outcome.  
 

15. As at the end of June 2021, there are no live red priority recommendations.  
There are twenty-three open amber priority recommendations which are 
summarised at Appendix 4.  Revised target dates have been supplied in respect 
of two of these recommendations, delaying the scheduled follow-up in one case: 
Medium Term Financial Plan, originally planned for July 2021, is now scheduled 
for follow-up in October 2021.   

 
16. Two further follow-ups have been scheduled: Guildhall Young Artists and 

Facilities Management–follow-ups in July and October 2021 respectively, at 
which time all recommendations are due to have been implemented according to 
their target dates. 

 
Corporate & Strategic Implications 
 
17. The overall Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide assurance as to the 

adequacy of the City of London Corporation’s systems of internal control and 
governance.  This programme of activity is aligned with the Corporate Plan, 
Corporate Risk Register and Departmental Top Risks.  The Guildhall School, as 
an institutional department of the Corporation, has a sub-section of the Plan and 
a programme of Internal Audit work that includes audit assignments and regular 
follow-up activity in respect of recommendations implementation.  

 
Conclusion 
 
18. Members are asked to note the findings of completed Internal Audit work, the 

current position of the 2021-22 Plan and the status of open high priority 
recommendations as at the end of June 2021.   
 

19. Follow-up activity is scheduled to be undertaken promptly in line with overall 
target recommendation timescales. One follow-up exercise has been delayed 
due to implementation slippage in respect of the sole recommendation arising 
from the audit.  
 

Appendices 

• Appendix 1: Recently Finalised 2020-21 Audit Outcome 

• Appendix 2: Recently Finalised 2021-22 Audit Outcome 

• Appendix 3: 2021-22 Guildhall School Audit Plan Delivery 

• Appendix 4: Open High Priority Recommendations 
 

 
Matt Lock 
Head of Audit and Risk Management, Chamberlain’s Department 
Matt.lock@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 16



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Guildhall School of Music & Drama: Guildhall Young Artists  

 Prepared by: Cirla Peall Issue Date: 21/04/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Executive Summary 

Background 
The Guildhall School of Music and Drama (The School) Strategic Plan 
2017-22 contains five objectives, one of which directly references 
the Guildhall Young Artists (GYA) programme: “We will refocus our 
outstanding and wide-reaching Guildhall Young Artists programme 
which helps young people find their creative voice.” 
 
The GYA Business Plan 2020-21 to 2022-23 was launched in October 
2020 and sets out the vision: “A national network transforming the 
potential of school age performers/creatives of all backgrounds with 
clear pathways to higher education (including Guildhall School) or 
employment.” 
 
The GYA model comprises six physical centres: Junior Guildhall 
(physically located at the School), CYM London (Lambeth), regional 
centres in Norfolk, Peterborough, Essex (Saffron Walden) and 
Somerset (Taunton), and the recent addition of a ‘virtual’ centre 
(GYA Online).  The offer is predominantly Saturday schools with 
some holiday courses and due to the COVID 19 pandemic, there has 
been a recent shift to online learning.  
 
The GYA programme will make a loss in respect of 2019-20 and this 
is attributed to the impact of the pandemic; fee reductions have 
been applied and whilst retention has been high at approximately 
85%, there is a financial impact of the drop in demand and additional 
costs associated with the significant move to ‘virtual’ provision.   
 

Scope 
This audit sought to assess the arrangements in place in respect of 
the following: 
 

• Mechanisms to support strategic delivery that include: 
translation of Strategy into SMART objectives and related action 
plans, with clear prioritisation and assignment of ownership; 
effective governance; and monitoring of strategy execution 
against defined objectives, adapting / taking corrective action 
where appropriate. 

• Creation of a safeguarding culture where there is: prompt 
identification and communication of safeguarding requirements 
to all relevant parties; maintenance of policies and procedures 
which align fully with safeguarding guidance; arrangements for 
monitoring safeguarding compliance and ensuring that necessary 
corrective action is undertaken on a timely basis; mechanisms for 
obtaining assurance that third party responsibilities are being 
met; and effective oversight of safeguarding activities. 

• Key financial controls to ensure the effective use of resources. 
 

The audit also examined the mechanisms in operation for review of 
the regional centres and the programme of consolidation. 
 
N.B. Audit testing in respect of the GYA programme link with GSMD 
Business Plan objectives preceded the Business Recovery Plan 2021-
25 and updated Strategic Framework, approved in February 2021.  

P
age 17



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Guildhall School of Music & Drama: Guildhall Young Artists  

 Prepared by: Cirla Peall Issue Date: 21/04/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Section 2: Management Action Plan  

Recommendation Management Response 

1.  GYA management should consider development 
of an implementation plan / action plan to 
supplement the information within the Business 
Plan and facilitate delivery of the GYA Strategy.  
The plans should reflect steps, milestones, 
measures of progress, detailed timelines as well 
as accountabilities, action owners / lead roles. 

Detailed milestones and action owners to be reviewed and communicated to all. 

 

 

Responsible Officer: Alison Mears / Nikki 
Shepperd 

Implementation Date: 19/07/2021 

2.  GYA Management should consider of the review 
positioning of the London Schools Symphony 
Orchestra to promote greater integration within 
the structure, particularly in terms of 
operational and financial reporting. 

Agree that this is an anomaly and have already started discussions to integrate more 
fully and to change the line management structure. Fortnightly finance meetings have 
been arranged. 

Responsible Officer: Alison Mears Implementation Date: 28/05/2021 

3.  GYA Management should review the 
arrangements for information flow from the 
Peterborough CYM Board to facilitate effective 
oversight and to help ensure that the School’s 
interests are adequately protected.    

This will be raised at management board meeting where more information is required 
and reviewed internally.  

Responsible Officer: Nikki Shepperd / 
Alison Mears 

Implementation Date: 28/05/2021 

4.   GYA Management should seek to clarify the 
implications of GDPR on the School in the 
context of Peterborough CYM, ensuring that risk 
to this School in this area is appropriately 
managed. 

Advice will be sought from the City GDPR Team and then discussions with 
Peterborough CYM to address these issues.  

Responsible Officer: Nikki Shepperd Implementation Date: 16/07/2021 

P
age 18



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Guildhall School of Music & Drama: Guildhall Young Artists  

 Prepared by: Cirla Peall Issue Date: 21/04/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Section 2: Management Action Plan  

Recommendation Management Response 

5.  GYA Management should ensure that risk 
owners, mitigation action owners and target 
timescales for completion are captured in 
relation to the GYA risk register, to facilitate 
effective risk management. 

Monthly risk register update meetings will look at adding further detail in this respect 

 

Responsible Officer: Alison Mears / Nikki 
Shepperd 

Implementation Date: 28/05/2021 

6.  In developing revised arrangements for 
monitoring of staff safeguarding training, GYA 
management should include more specific 
target timescales for completion. 

The current Educare training is under revision and specific timescales will be added as 
we roll out the training. 

Responsible Officer: Alison Mears / 
Hetsie Van Rooyen 

Implementation Date: 16/07/2021 

7.  GYA Management should obtain assurance that 
the School’s safeguarding culture is not 
undermined by the arrangements operated by 
the lead partner for the Peterborough CYM. 

Discussions have already taken place around this issue and assurances and processes 
will be confirmed 

Responsible Officer: Alison Mears / 
Hetsie Van Rooyen 

Implementation Date: 28/05/2021 

8.  GYA management should consider reviewing the 
use of purchasing cards by non-establishment 
staff. 

This will be actioned along with the change of line management so that LSSO purchases 
are made by the Head of CYM.  

Responsible Officer: Alison Mears Implementation Date: 28/05/2021 

P
age 19



Internal Audit – Management Report 

Guildhall School of Music & Drama: Guildhall Young Artists  

 Prepared by: Cirla Peall Issue Date: 21/04/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Section 2: Management Action Plan  

Recommendation Management Response 

9.  In relation to rollout of the new arrangements: 
GYA accounts receivable processes should 
incorporate an adequate separate of duties to 
facilitate independent checking of invoices 
raised against amounts due, transparent debt 
recovery arrangements, and regular 
reconciliation of amounts received, income 
banked and general ledger postings. 

Ongoing discussions with finance to ensure this information is available so detailed 
oversight can be regularly applied. 

 

 

 

Responsible Officer: Nikki Shepperd / 
Graeme Hood 

Implementation Date: 16/07/2021 

10.  Budget monitoring reports should be circulated 
to budget holders on a regular, monthly basis, 
and finance meetings convened at regular 
intervals across the GYA programme. 

Monthly finance meetings to be set up between Heads of Centres and nominated 
accountant. Monthly GYA meetings are already in place for AM/GH/NS/SM. 

Responsible Officer: Graeme Hood / 
Alison Mears 

Implementation Date: 16/07/2021 

 

P
age 20



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Executive Summary 

Background and Scope 

This Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student 
Housing (the Code) sets out what constitutes good practice in the 
management of student accommodation. The Code covers areas 
including but not limited to health and safety, repairs and 
maintenance, and relationships between managers and student 
tenants; it includes both ‘Mandatory’ and ‘Non-Mandatory’ 
requirements.  By complying with the Code, the Guildhall School can 
demonstrate to current and prospective students that its Sundial 
Court accommodation is of a satisfactory standard. 
 

Section 8 of the Code requires the Guildhall School’s Internal Audit 
function to provide independent assurance as to the extent the School 
complies with the Code. 
 

The objectives of this review were to: 
▪ provide assurance that that the Guildhall School complies with 

the Mandatory elements of the Code.  
▪ identify areas of non-compliance with the Code and make 

appropriate recommendations to improve accommodation 
standards; 

▪ follow up recommendations made as part of the previous audit, 
undertaken in 2017. 

 

The audit was undertaken remotely, reviewing electronic records. 
 

Summary 

The audit review found that whilst the School largely complies with 
the requirements of the Code, there are clear areas for enhancing the 
standard of both accommodation and student life. These relate to: 

▪ updating the General Outbreak / Pandemic Response Plan (Code 
section 2.2); 

▪ undertaking routine maintenance of Fire Alarm Systems (2.7); 
▪ undertaking routine checks on the presence and condition of 

Signage, Fire Extinguishers, Fire Blankets and Fire Doors (2.8). 
▪ monitoring the level of lighting in student bedrooms (2.17); 
▪ inspecting the drainage and sewerage systems (2.21); 
▪ providing repairs and maintenance Service Level Agreements to 

students (3.2 and 5.5.11); 
▪ installing ‘non-drinking water’ signs in student bathrooms (2.20); 
▪ addressing outstanding actions from the recent School Security 

Vulnerability Assessment (3.6); 
▪ promoting the Universities UK Code of Practice within Student 

Induction materials (1.4) and ensuring Students have access to the 
current Flat Handbook (2.12); 

▪ enhancing environmentally responsible behaviours of students 
(4.2). 

There are two recommendations from the previous audit that have 
yet to be implemented; these relate to enhancing the content of the 
Student Handbook in respect of student deposits and lost flat keys. 

P
age 21



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Section 2: Management Action Plan 

Recommendation Management Response 

1.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the General Outbreak / 
Pandemic Response Plan is updated 
and subject to regular review and 
update going forward. 

Accept recommendation. 

Building on the existing Covid outbreak plan, the aim is to take the learning and update the 
general plan. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations 

Implementation Date: 31/07/2021 

2.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that routine checks carried out 
on the presence and condition of Fire 
Safety Signage, Fire Extinguishers, Fire 
Blankets together with the condition 
of Fire Doors are recorded. 

Accept recommendation. 

The general information/check list that checks have occurred and comply with the inspection 
standards will need to be improved and appropriate training provided. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021 

3.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the level of lighting in 
Student Bedrooms is subject to 
regular monitoring to ensure it is of a 
satisfactory standard.  

Accept recommendation and will incorporate into the routine flat inspections. 

Responsible Officer: Facilities Manager Implementation Date: 06/09/2021  

 

P
age 22



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Recommendation Management Response 

4.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
develop a programme for inspecting 
the drainage and sewerage systems. 

 

Accept recommendation 
HoD of Engineering & Projects will put a planned preventative maintenance programme in 
place.  This will also go on to the improved regular visual check list. 

Responsible Officer: Head of Engineering & 
Projects 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021 

5.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that Service Level Agreements 
for repairs and maintenance are 
issued to students, and that these 
state target response times for 
undertaking works required. 

Accept recommendation. 
This work will be undertaken and be ready for issue at the start of the new term. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & 
Operations/Head of 
Engineering & Projects 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021  

6.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that ‘non-drinking water’ signs 
are installed above cold taps in 
bathrooms at the earliest 
opportunity. 

Accept recommendation. 
Engineering team to verify all water sources to allow for appropriate signage to be installed. 

Responsible Officer: Facilities 
Managers/Engineering 
Operations Manager 

Implementation Date: 25/06/2021  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 23



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

Recommendation Management Response 

7.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the outstanding security 
vulnerabilities are addressed at the 
earliest opportunity. 

 

Accept recommendation. 
Deputy Head of Audience Experience & Operations will work with the newly appointed 
Protection Operations Manager to develop action plan to respond to recommendation in the 
vulnerabilities assessment. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience/Protection 
Operations Manager 
(Security Contract 
Providers ISS) 

Implementation Date: 06/09/2021  

8.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the Universities UK Code 
of Practice is promoted within the 
School’s Induction materials. 

 

Accept recommendation. 
This will be added to all materials issued to students. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience/Student Life 
Officer 

Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

9.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
improve arrangements for managing 
version control, to ensure that the 
current version of the Flat Handbook 
is circulated to students. 

Accept recommendation. 
Although there are version controls, accept that some flats did not have the most recent 
handbook and due diligence had not been implemented. 

Responsible Officer: Facilities Manager Implementation Date: 15/07/2021 

 

P
age 24



Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit – Management Report 

2021-22 – Guildhall School – Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student Housing 

 Prepared by: Ryan Wakefield Date: 09/06/2021 Assurance Rating: AMBER 

 

 

 

Recommendation Management Response 

10.  The Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations should 
ensure that the Student Handbook 
includes a statement outlining 
expectations that Students will 
minimise energy and water 
consumption.  

Accept recommendation. 
Working with the stakeholders including student union, promote more widely in handbook 
and other outlets environmental and sustainability information regards resource 
consumption. 

Responsible Officer: Deputy Head of Audience 
Experience & Operations. 

Implementation Date: 15/07/2021  

  
 

 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 26



Appendix 3 
 

Internal Audit Work 2021-22 
 

Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Universities UK Code of Practice for the Management of Student 
Housing (The Code) 
 

The Code sets out what constitutes good practice in the management of 
student accommodation, covering areas including health and safety, 
repairs and maintenance, and relationships between managers and 
student tenants; it includes both ‘Mandatory’ and ‘Non-Mandatory’ 
requirements. The objectives of this review were to:  
 

• provide assurance that that the Guildhall School complies with the 
Mandatory elements of the Code. 

• identify areas of non-compliance with the Code and make 
appropriate recommendations to improve accommodation standards; 
and 

• follow up on recommendations made as part of the previous audit, 
undertaken in 2017. 

 

 
Complete 

 
Moderate 

 
0 

 
7 
 

 
3 

 
10 

Medium Term Financial Planning 
To provide independent assurance on implementation of the Plan and 
delivery against this.   
 
Members of the GSMD Audit & Risk Management Committee have 
requested that this incorporate a look at how progress is measured 
against KPIs, targets and objectives, specifically in terms of the 
discussions with the City in respect of investment sought by the School, 
and projects emerging in the second phase of the Plan. 
 

 
Not 

Initiated 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

P
age 27



Project & Scope Current 
Stage 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 
 

Data Quality 
Independent verification/validation of data submissions as part of a 
rolling programme of checks.  A single check to be undertaken each year 
to provide assurance of integrity in terms of process and systems used to 
capture and prepare the data for submission. 

 
Not 

Initiated 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Safeguarding 
To provide independent assurance in respect of the School’s overall 
safeguarding arrangements. 

 
Not 

Initiated 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 TOTAL 0 7 3 10 

 

P
age 28



Appendix 4 

Schedule of GSMD Open High Priority Recommendations as at July 2021  
 

Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

1. Student Affairs (MK 2808) - Review of service 
provision to provide ongoing assurance that delivery 
is effective and represents value for money. 

Student Affairs management should ensure that: 

• Periodic service reviews are undertaken, considering 
alternative delivery models where appropriate;  

• Such reviews should be documented to demonstrate 
the process followed and the outcome, including 
relevant cost implications to facilitate approval by an 
appropriate party;  

• The impact of any delivery model changes 
implemented should be monitored and reported to an 
appropriate forum such as the Operations Board. 

Amber 30/09/19 31/10/21 Internal Audit Comment 
A revised target timescale of October 2021 was 
proposed by the Secretary & Dean of Students 
at the April 2021 meeting of the School’s Audit & 
Risk Management Committee; the timing reflects 
when the Student Affairs Annual Report for 
2020-21 is due to be presented.  
 

2. Medium Term Financial Plan (MK 3647): Timetable 
and Responsibilities for Creation, Review and 
Approval 

A timetable for the creation, review and sign off of the 
School's MTFP, including clear definition of 
responsibilities should be drawn up, approved and 
disseminated to key stakeholders. 

Amber 30/06/21 30/09/21 Internal Audit Comment 
This was the only recommendation raised as 
part of the MTFP audit and follow-up was 
scheduled for July 2021. A revised target date of 
30/09/21 has recently been provided and follow-
up will now take place in October 2021. 
 
Management Update 
This remains a work in progress. A version of the 
MTFP was approved by the Governing board of 
the School at its February 2021 meeting.  

P
age 29



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

A report focussing on the 2021/22 budget and 
progress towards identifying savings was 
presented to the Board in May 2021. The second 
part of the plan involves a business case to the 
City for investment in five areas that the School 
has identified as having the potential to generate 
significant new income streams. A draft of the 
business case was approved by the board in May 
and an updated version will be presented to the 
city's Resource Allocation Sub-committee shortly. 
Once that has been approved the School will be 
able to set a timetable for implementation and roll 
out of the objectives for each area included within 
the plan. 

3. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK3649): Reporting to the Executive Board 
 

The Principal should ensure that the Guildhall School's 
Management Information Dashboard is presented to 
Members of the School's Executive Board, on a quarterly 
basis. 

Amber 30/06/21 N/A Internal Audit Comment: 
These represent thirteen of the fourteen 
recommendations were raised as part of the 
joint GSMD & Barbican Centre Facilities 
Management audit.   
 
Internal Audit follow-up of this area is scheduled 
for October 2021 as target implementation 
timescales for the full set of recommendations 
range between May and September 2021. 
 

4. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK3650): Engineering Team Performance Measures 
 

The Head of Engineering Projects should determine 
appropriate productivity targets and wider performance 
measures for the Engineering Team and implement a 
framework for monitoring performance accordingly, in 
order to drive the necessary improvements in 
performance. 

Amber 30/09/21 N/A 

P
age 30



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

5. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK3652): Programmed Maintenance Records 

 
The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that 
the accuracy and completeness of Programmed 
Maintenance tasks within the Micad and Agility systems 
are periodically verified. 
 

Amber 31/05/21 N/A 

6. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3653): Contractor Performance Management 
 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that 
Skanska's performance in completing Programmed 
Maintenance tasks is regularly monitored, to ensure 
Skanska are delivering in accordance with contractual 
requirements. 

Amber 15/07/21 N/A 

7. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3656): Quality of Planned Programmed 
Maintenance 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement 
a framework for monitoring the quality of Programmed 
Maintenance, completed by both Skanska and the 
Engineering Team. 

Amber 15/07/21 N/A 

8. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3657): Asbestos Register 
 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that 
the completeness of the Asbestos Register is subject to 
regular verification. 

Amber 31/07/21 N/A 

P
age 31



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

9. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3660): Water Management Tasks 

 
The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that 
all water management tasks are set out within the 
Programmed Maintenance Schedules. 

Amber  31/05/21 N/A 

10. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3661): Gas Safety, Electrical Safety and Water 
Management tasks 
 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement 
an appropriate action plan to ensure that all outstanding 
all Gas Safety, Electrical Safety and Water Management 
tasks are completed. 

Amber 15/06/21 N/A 

11. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3662): Reactive Maintenance 
 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that 
Skanska's performance in completing reactive 
maintenance tasks on a timely basis is regularly 
monitored to ensure conformance to contractual 
requirements. 

Amber 15/07/21 N/A 

12. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3664): Quality of Reactive Maintenance 
 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement 
a framework for monitoring the quality of Reactive 
Maintenance, completed by both Skanska and the 
Engineering Team. 

Amber 15/07/21 N/A 

P
age 32



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

13. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3665): Engineering Team Skills Analysis 
 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should ensure that 
the skills analysis exercise is completed in an appropriate 
timeframe. 

Amber 30/09/21 N/A 

14. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3666): Quoted Works 
 

The Head of Engineering and projects should enhance 
monitoring arrangements to ensure that quoted works are 
subject to approval prior to works being initiated. 

Amber 31/05/21 N/A 

15. GSMD & Barbican Centre: Facilities Management 
(MK 3667): Reactive Maintenance Task Completion 
 

The Head of Engineering and Projects should implement 
arrangements for verifying the accuracy of reactive 
maintenance tasks recorded as 'completed' in Micad. 

Amber 31/05/21 N/A 

16. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3706): Action Plans for 
Strategy Delivery 
 

GYA management should consider development of an 
implementation plan / action plan to supplement the 
information within the Business Plan and facilitate 
delivery of the GYA Strategy. The plans should reflect 
steps, milestones, measures of progress, detailed 
timelines as well as accountabilities, action owners / lead 
roles. 

Amber 19/07/21 N/A Internal Audit Comment: 
These represent eight of the ten 
recommendations raised as part of the audit. 
The latest target implementation dates provided 
are mid-July 2021 and Internal Audit follow-up 
has been scheduled for the same month.   

P
age 33



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

17. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3731): GYA Business 
Plan Risk Register 

GYA Management should ensure that risk owners, 
mitigation action owners and target timescales for 
completion are captured in relation to the GYA risk 
register, to facilitate effective risk management. 

Amber 28/05/21 N/A   

18. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3733): Peterborough 
CYM Information Flow 
 

GYA Management should review the arrangements for 
information flow from the Peterborough CYM Board to 
facilitate effective oversight and to help ensure that the 
School’s interests are adequately protected.    

Amber 28/05/21 N/A 

19. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3734): Peterborough 
CYM GDPR Implications 
 

GYA Management should seek to clarify the implications 
of GDPR on the School in the context of Peterborough 
CYM, ensuring that risk to this School in this area is 
appropriately managed. 

Amber 16/07/21 N/A 

20. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3780): Accounts 
Receivable Controls 
 

GYA accounts receivable processes should incorporate 
an adequate separate of duties to facilitate independent 
checking of invoices raised against amounts due, 
transparent debt recovery arrangements, and regular 
reconciliation of amounts received, income banked and 
general ledger postings. 

Amber 16/07/21 N/A 

P
age 34



Recommendation Area Priority Original 
Target 
Date 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

Comment  

21. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3781): Regular Financial 
Reporting 
 

Budget monitoring reports should be circulated to budget 
holders on a regular, monthly basis, and finance 
meetings convened at regular intervals across the GYA 
programme. 

Amber 16/07/21 N/A 

22. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3793): Staff Safeguarding 
Training 
 

In developing revised arrangements for monitoring of 
staff safeguarding training, GYA management should 
include more specific target timescales for completion. 

Amber 16/07/21 N/A 

23. Guildhall Young Artists (MK 3794): Assurance re 
PCYM Safeguarding Arrangements 
 

GYA Management should obtain assurance that the 
School’s safeguarding culture is not undermined by the 
arrangements operated by the lead partner for the 
Peterborough CYM. 

Amber 28/05/21 N/A 

 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 36



 

Committee(s) 
 

Dated: 
 

Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 
School of Music and Drama 
 

15/7/2021 

Subject: 
City of London Corporation Risk Management Policy and 
Strategy 2021 

 

Public 
 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? N/a 

What is the source of Funding?  

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: 
Caroline Al-Beyerty, Chamberlain 
 

For Information 
 

Report author: 
Paul Dudley, Corporate Risk Manager 

 
 

 
Summary 

The City Corporation’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy is based upon best 
practice including ISO Risk Management Standard:2018, guidance from the HM 
Orange Book 2019, the HM Management of Risk Guide 2011 as well as other 
public sector risk management strategies. 

On the 25 May 2021 the Audit and Risk Management Committee (City 
Corporation) endorsed the latest revision of the Col Risk Management Policy and 
Strategy. 

The Committee agreed that the revised document should be circulated to all 
Chief Officers, departmental risk co-ordinators and published on the Risk 
Management SharePoint site. 

In addition, the Chairman wrote to all Chairman of Grand/Service Committees 

with a copy of the Policy and Strategy and suggesting that its publication may 

present an ideal opportunity for Committees to consider reviewing how they 

currently undertake this role and what improvements, if any, could be made. 

The Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 

School of Music and Drama subsequently received a copy of this document and 

has asked a number of questions which this report seeks to address. 

 

 

. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Recommendation(s) 
 
Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the City Corporation’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy 2021 and 
the responses to the Chairman’s questions. 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 
1. On the 25 May 2021 the Audit and Risk Management Committee (City 

Corporation) endorsed the latest revision of the Col Risk Management Policy and 
Strategy. This document was circulated to Chief Officers, departmental risk co-
Ordinator’s and published on the Risk Management SharePoint site. 

 
2. In addition, the Chairman wrote to all Chairman of Grand/Service Committees 

with a copy of the Policy and Strategy and suggesting that the publication of the 
revised Risk Management Policy and Strategy may present an ideal opportunity 
for Committees to consider reviewing how they currently undertake this role and 
what improvements, if any, could be made. 

 
 
Current Position 
 
3. The Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 

School of Music and Drama subsequently received a copy of the Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy and has asked a number of questions (see 
below). 

 

a) What is new and significant in this document compared with its 
predecessor? 

Most of the changes are minor changes to the text. However, the Committee’s 
attention is drawn to the inclusion of the accepted risk procedure page 11 and 
the full version of the risk matrix added as page 29. The Strategy also 
includes details of the role of new Executive Leadership Board (replacing the 
Summit Group) 

b) What are the implications, if any, for how our own ARMC undertakes its 
risk management responsibilities? 

The Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee (City 

Corporation) has suggested to all Chairman of Grand/Service Committees 

that the endorsement of the revised Policy and Strategy is ideal opportunity 

for Committees to consider reviewing how they currently undertake this role 

and what improvements, if any, could be made. 

Page 38



This role is outlined on page 12 of the document - “Oversee the significant 

risks faced by departments in the delivery of their service responsibilities”. 

This role has not changed since the last edition (January 2020) edition. 

If the Committee wish to consider reviewing its role the following questions 

may be helpful: 

o How do senior management support and promote risk management? 

o How well are officers equipped and supported to manage risk well? 

o How is City Corporation’s Risk Policy and Strategy being embedded? 

o Are there effective arrangements for managing risks with partners? 

o How do departmental processes promote effective risk management? 

o How are risk identified, assessed, handled, and reported at officer and 

Committee levels? 

o How does risk management contributes to achieving successful School 

outcomes? 

 

c) What implications, if any, are there for the Committee in receiving the 
Summary risk register? 

None. City Corporation guidance is that the detailed risk register showing 
departmental (and corporate, if any) risks should be reported with the 
quarterly risk update report. Thereafter the Committee may elect to receive 
one or more from a range of risk reports including the summary risk register, 
generated from the Pentana Risk system and any other information that the 
Committee feels necessary in fulfilling its remit in relation to Risk 
Management. 

 

d) What are the definitions of Grand/Service Committees and Chief 
Officers? 

A Grand or Service Committee is also known as a Main Committee. For 
example, the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama 
is a Main Committee.  

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School of Music 
and Drama is a sub-committee of the Board of Governors. 

Chief Officers are the most senior officer within that department- sometimes 
known as a directors. So, for example the Principal of the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama is the Chief Officer for the School. The Chief Officers from 
each of the City’s departments collectively make up the Executive Leadership 
Board. 

 

 

 

Page 39



Conclusion 
 
On the 25 May 2021 the Audit and Risk Management Committee (City Corporation) 
endorsed the latest revision of the CoL Risk Management Policy and Strategy. The 
document was sent to all Chairman of Grand/Service Committees. Subsequently the 
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama received a copy and has asked a number of questions in relation 
to the potential impact on the risk role of the Committee. This report provides 
responses to those questions as well as some suggested questions if the Committee 
wish to under a review of their risk management role. 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Clean copy version of the updated version of the City Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy 2021  
 
 
 
 
Paul Dudley 
Corporate Risk Manager 
T: 020 7332 1297 
E:  paul.dudley@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 40



 

 
 

 

 

  

City of London 
Corporation 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGY (INCLUDING 
THE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS GUIDE) 
DUDLEY, PAUL 

 

VERSION 2.0   

 
Endorsed by Audit and Risk Management Committee: (25 May 2021) 

Appendix 1

Page 41



   

1 
 

 

Table of Contents 
SECTION 1 – Risk Management Policy Statement .............................................................. 2 

1.0 Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 The Policy Statement ....................................................................................................... 3 

3.0 Policy Objectives: ............................................................................................................. 3 

4.0 These key objectives will be achieved by: ....................................................................... 4 

5.0 Appetite for risk ............................................................................................................... 4 

6.0 Roles and Responsibilities ............................................................................................... 5 

7.0 Review ............................................................................................................................. 5 

SECTION 2 – Risk Management Strategy ........................................................................... 6 

2.1. Introduction .................................................................................................................... 6 

2.2 The risk management framework ................................................................................... 7 

2.3 Levels of organisational risk ............................................................................................ 7 

2.4 Review and reporting of risk registers............................................................................. 8 

2.5. Escalation criteria ......................................................................................................... 10 

2.6. Risk appetite ................................................................................................................. 10 

2.7. Effectiveness of the City Corporation’s risk management framework ........................ 11 

2.8. Roles and responsibilities ............................................................................................. 12 

SECTION 3 – Risk Management Process Guide ................................................................. 16 

3.1 Introduction ................................................................................................................... 16 

3.2 Where and when should risk management be applied? ............................................... 16 

3.3 The Risk Management process ...................................................................................... 16 

3.4 What is risk management? ............................................................................................ 17 

3.5 Brief overview the steps in the risk management process ........................................... 17 

3.6 How to apply risk management..................................................................................... 18 

Appendix 1 .................................................................................................................... 25 

Glossary ............................................................................................................................... 25 

Appendix 2 .................................................................................................................... 28 

Characteristics of a corporate risks ..................................................................................... 28 

Appendix 3 .................................................................................................................... 29 

Corporate Risk Matrix ........................................................................................................... 29 

 

 

  

Page 42



   

2 
 

SECTION 1 – Risk Management Policy Statement 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1  The City of London Corporation is the governing body of the Square Mile 

dedicated to a vibrant and thriving City, supporting a diverse and 
sustainable London within a globally successful UK. It aims to contribute 
to a flourishing society, support a thriving economy and shape outstanding 
environments by strengthening the character, capacity and connections of 
the City, London and the UK for the benefit of people who live, learn, work 
and visit here. Its unique franchise arrangements support the achievement 
of these aims. 

 
1.2 The Square Mile is the historic centre of London and is home to the ‘City’ 

– the financial and commercial heart of the UK. The City Corporation’s 
reach extends far beyond the Square Mile’s boundaries and across 
private, public and charitable and community sector responsibilities. 

 
1.3 The City of London Corporation (“the City Corporation”) is responsible for 

ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards of governance; that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively; 
and that arrangements are made to secure continuous improvement in the 
way its functions are operated.  
 

1.4 In discharging this overall responsibility, the City Corporation is 
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of 
its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which 
includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

 
1.5 Well managed risk taking should be recognised by all managers and staff 

within the City Corporation as being fundamentally important to effective 
service delivery, maximising opportunities for innovation in service 
development and adapting to change. It underpins the City Corporation’s 
values of Relevant, Reliable, Responsible and Radical. 

 
1.6 Only by active management of risks will the City Corporation be able to 

meet its corporate aims and outcomes which in turn will enhance the 
value of services provided to the City. 

 
1.7  The City Corporation aim’s to be an exemplar of good practice and 

continue to meet its statutory responsibility to have in place satisfactory 
arrangements for managing risks, as laid out under regulation 4 of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015: 

 
“The relevant body is responsible for ensuring that the financial 

management of the body is adequate and effective  

Page 43



   

3 
 

and that the body has a sound system of internal control which 
facilitates the effective exercise of that body's functions and which 

includes arrangements for the management of risk.” 
 
 

1.8 The effective management of risk is at the heart of the City Corporation's 
approach to delivering cost effective and valued services to the public as 
well as being an important element within the corporate governance of the 
organisation. 

 
1.9 Consequently, all staff and managers must understand the importance of 

well thought through and managed risks in decision making and adopt an 
approach that will help identify, assess, manage them as well as reviewing 
progress.  

 

2.0 The Policy Statement 
 
2.1 The City Corporation recognises and accepts its legal responsibility1 to 

manage its risks effectively, has adopted a proactive approach to well 
thought through risk taking (balancing opportunity and risk) to achieve its 
objectives and enhance the value of services to the Community.  

 
2.2 The overall aim being to increase the likelihood of delivering on the 

Corporate Outcomes and key corporate and service objectives by 
supporting innovation, encouraging creativity, minimising threats and 
providing an environment that risk management is seen as adding value 
to service delivery. 

 
2.3 This policy applies to all departments and institutions of the City 

Corporation. 2 
 
 

3.0 Policy Objectives: 
 

a) Ensure that risk management effectively supports the corporate 
governance of the City Corporation. 

 
b) Maintain and Improve leadership and collaboration of risk 

management activity across the City Corporation.  
  
c) Integrate risk management into the culture of the City Corporation as 

well as to its key management processes including corporate and 
service business planning processes, programmes, projects, 
performance and financial management. 

 

 
1 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (as amended) 
2 The City of London Police have adopted their own risk management policy and process.  
Bridge House Estates have adopted a risk protocol (2021) based upon the City’s Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy.   

Page 44



   

4 
 

d) Ensure that the risk management process for identifying, evaluating, 
controlling, reviewing, reporting and communicating risks across the 
City Corporation is in line with Best Practice, consistently applied, 
understood and owned by all relevant staff. 

 
e) Ensure that the Executive Leadership Board (This Board has replaced 

the Summit Group- June 2021), Grand/Service Committees and the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee, external regulators and other 
stakeholders obtain necessary assurance that the City Corporation is 
managing and mitigating its business risks effectively: 

 
f) Continuously improve risk management through learning and 

experience and actively Communicate to the City Corporation’s risk 
management approach to all employees and stakeholders. 
 

4.0 These key objectives will be achieved by: 
 

 Ensuring that the City Corporation’s risk management strategy (which 
includes clear roles and responsibilities) is in line with current 
standards and best practice guidance. 

 Demonstrating dynamic and effective management, reporting and 
challenge of risks at both Officer and Member levels. This provides 
assurance to external regulators, the public at large and other 
stakeholders that the City Corporation is managing /mitigating its risks 
and in line with good corporate governance practice. 

 Complying with all relevant statutory requirements. 
 Recognising that effective Partnership working can be a contribution to 

the way that risks are mitigated. 
 Providing opportunities for shared learning and training on risk 

management across the City Corporation. 
 Embedding, supporting and promoting effective risk management. 

 
 

5.0 Appetite for risk 
 
5.1 The City Corporation will minimise unnecessary risk and manage residual 

risk to a level commensurate with its status as a public body so that: 
 

 The risks have been properly identified and assessed. 
 The risks will be appropriately managed, including the taking of 

appropriate actions and the regular review of risk(s). 
 

          5.2 The City of London Corporation will also positively decide to take risks in 
pursuit of its strategic aims where it has sufficient assurances that the 
potential benefits justify the level of risk to be taken. 

 

Page 45



5 

6.0 Roles and Responsibilities 

6.1 Management and staff should be familiar with, and competent in, the 
application of the City Corporation's risk management policy, and are 
accountable for the delivery of that policy within their areas of 
responsibility. A full set of roles and responsibilities is set out in Risk 
Management Strategy.  

7.0 Review 

7.1 This policy will be reviewed and, where appropriate, updated, on an 
annual basis. 

Approved: 25 May 2021 

Signed: Signed: 

John Barradell Alex Barr 
Town Clerk Chairman of the Audit and Risk 

Management Committee 

Page 46



   

6 
 

SECTION 2 – Risk Management Strategy 
2.1. Introduction  
 
The aim of this risk management strategy is to set out a formal and structured 
approach to identifying, assessing, managing and reporting risk within the City 
Corporation (known as the risk management framework). It should be read 
conjunction with the Risk Management Policy Statement as well as the risk 
management guidance for officers. 
 
The following sections include: 
 

 a description of the components of the risk management framework,  
 the levels of risk that the City Corporation has identified, the reporting 

arrangements including those to Grand/Service Committees,  
 criteria for escalating risks from one organisational level to another and 

applying the City Corporation’s risk appetite to corporate risks.  
 A list of the roles and responsibilities for Committees, senior 

management groups and officers involved in the risk management 
framework. 

 
By adhering to this strategy, the City Corporation will be better placed to 
achieve its Corporate Outcomes and objectives in an efficient, effective and 
timely manner. 
 
 Every risk is linked to a business objective and this strategy will help enforce 
a proactive stance to managing these risks, ensuring that less time is spent 
reacting to situations and more time is spent taking advantage of 
opportunities. 
 
The City Corporation’s risk management framework is an integral part of the 
City Corporation’s overall corporate governance arrangements as well as 
supporting the delivery of the Corporate Plan. 

Listed below are some of the benefits of successfully implementing this 
strategy:  
 

 Protecting and enhancing the City of London Corporation’s reputation 
 Improve organisational resilience 
 Increase the likelihood of achieving its goals and delivering outcomes 
 Improve the identification of opportunities and threats 
 Improve governance, stakeholder confidence and trust 
 Establish a reliable basis for decision making and planning 
 Effectively allocate and use resources for risk mitigation 

 
 

 

 

Page 47



   

7 
 

2.2 The risk management framework 
The framework consists of the following components: 

 

  

2.3 Levels of organisational risk 
To ensure that risk is managed at the appropriate level within the City 
Corporation the following levels of risk have been identified: 
 
Corporate - if they occurred, would have a significant impact on the City 
Corporation as a whole (or significant part of) and/or the successful delivery of 
its corporate outcomes and its ability to exercise its functions. See Appendix 2 
for the characteristics of a corporate risk. 
 
Departmental - if they occurred, would seriously inhibit the achievement of 
the aims and objectives of the department. They differ from Corporate risks in 
that they usually only impact on one department, rather than cutting across 
several departments. 
 
Service – if they occurred would usually concern failure to achieve service 
objectives. Service risks are those concerned with maintaining an appropriate 
level business service to existing and new service users.  
 
Team – those risks concerned with team related objectives. These will be 
lower order risks, often those regarded as business as usual.  

•Statement of intent on how the City Corporation 
will approach risk. It also includes a risk appetite 
statement.

Risk Management Policy 
Statement

•Defines the activities  and responsibilities for 
managing risk and reporting arrangementsRisk  Managment strategy

•Guidance for staff on how to  fulfill strategyRisk Management Guidance

•Register which records all corporate risks and who is 
responsible for managing themCorporate risk register

•Register which records all departmental risks and who is 
responsbile fot managing themDepartmental risk registers

•Register which records all service/team risks and 
who is responsbile for managing them ( register -
depending upon size and compexity of department)

Service/team risk registers

•Register which records all programme/project risks
Programme/Project risk 

Registers

Page 48



   

8 
 

Programme/Project - their impact is limited to the programme/project’s 
outcomes, budget, or timescales. 
  

2.4 Review and reporting of risk registers 
The following section outlines the reporting arrangements for these levels of 
risks. 

The diagram below illustrates the reporting lines from service/team level to 
departmental and corporate levels. Below is a set of criteria which provides 
guidance on escalating/de-escalating a risk from one level to another.  

There is a cyclical quarterly reporting process that is now embedded within 
the City Corporation. The diagram below shows the hierarchy of reporting 
lines from departments to Committees.  

Note: the Executive Leadership Board (ELB) has replaced the Summit Group and has a 
revised Chief Officer membership following the implementation of the 2021 Target Operating 
Model. 

Corporate risks – all corporate risks must be owned by a Chief Officer and 
as such should be reviewed and updated, together with their department’s 
risks, on at least a quarterly basis. They should be reviewed by the 
departmental management team.  

Chief Officers who own corporate risks must report them to their relevant 
service committee/Grand Committee3 at least quarterly (although for schools 
may this is termly). The format of this report was previously agreed by Summit 
Group (now reformed as the Executive Leadership Board) and available on 
the Sharepoint risk management page.  

Corporate risks are reported quarterly to the Chief Officer Risk Management 
Group (CORMG) working on behalf of the ELB4, to review all corporate risks 

 
3 CoL Reporting risk information to Grand Committees 
4 Should the ELB determine a different approach to risk management as outlined in this Strategy, these 
will be incorporated in a CoLC Risk Management Strategy during 2021.  

ELB = Executive Leadership Board 

CORMG = Chief Officer Risk 
Management Group 

Audit & RM 
Committee

ELB

Department 
1

Service 1.1 Service 1.2…

Department 
2 

Service 2.1 Service 2.2…

Department 
3…

Service 3.1 Service 3.2…

CORMG

Grand 
Committees

Page 49



   

9 
 

as well as make recommendations for new corporate risks received from 
Chief Officers. CORMG will apply criteria to assess the suitability of a risk to 
be approved as a corporate risk. (see appendix 2) 

The ELB will subsequently receive a quarterly risk update report and may 
approve new risks to be added or existing risks to be escalated on to the 
corporate risk register or de-escalated to the relevant departmental risk 
register. 

The quarterly risk report is presented to the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee by the Chamberlain. Any new corporate risks must be endorsed by 
this Committee.  

Departmental - departmental risk registers must be reviewed on at least a 
quarterly basis at their respective Departmental Management Team Meeting 
(DMT).   

They may also take the opportunity to identify new risks as well as 
recommending to CORMG, departmental level risks which may to be suitable 
for inclusion in the Corporate Risk Register.  

The Chief Officer is responsible to approving recommendations for a 
departmental risk to be considered as a corporate risk by CORMG. 

Departmental risks, together with any corporate risks owned by the 
department, must be reported their respective Grand /Service Committee on 
at least a quarterly basis. (Note, the three schools report may be termly)  

The Grand/Service Committee may make recommendations to the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee in respect of existing corporate/departmental 
risks or other matters for their consideration.  

All red departmental risks are reported, at the same time as all corporate 
risks, to CORMG. These risks are also included in the quarterly risk updates 
to ELB and the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

Service – within each department there will be individual divisions, groups or 
functional areas. For this purpose, these are known as services and each may 
have a service level risk register. (Note that some departments are relatively 
small and may not require or need service risk registers). Service level risk 
registers must be reviewed at least quarterly by service management team 
meetings. Risks may be recommended for escalation to the departmental 
management team to consider for inclusion in the departmental risk register. 

Team – within each service area there may be individual teams. Team level 
risk registers, where they exist, should be reviewed quarterly by the team 
management team.   

Programme/Project – Programme/Project-related risks are identified from the 
outset during the initial risk assessment. Further risk assessments are should 
be undertaken at the beginning of every new stage of the project. Regular 
project team meetings are used for monitoring progress in manging these 
risks as well as horizon scanning for project risks. Project risk guidance is 
available on the Sharepoint Project Management page. 

Page 50



   

10 
 

 

2.5. Escalation criteria 
Risks may be escalated or de-escalated from one level organisational level to 
another (e.g., from departmental to corporate level). The guidance below sets 
out the factors to be taken into consideration when escalation/de-escalation 
should occur. 

A risk may be moved to a higher level in the organisation (escalated) for the 
following reasons: 

 The risk becomes unmanageable at current level 
 The risk is outside of the appetite boundaries (see para 6 below) 
 The risk remains very high even after control measures have been fully 

implemented 
 The risk impacts on more than one department/functional area 
 The risk is directly related to an organisational objective 

De-escalation 

A risk may be moved to a lower level in the organisation (de-escalated) for the 
following reasons: 

 The risk can be controlled and managed at a lower level 
 The risk rating has decreased significantly or is not considered to be 

critical to the achievement of a corporate /departmental objective. 
 The risk is below appetite boundaries (see para 2.6 below). 
 The risk will only affect one department/project or 

programme/functional area and is better controlled locally. 

 

Note: Escalation/de-escalation of a risk is not automatic and will depend upon 
the judgement of senior management or senior management groups as to 
whether this should take place. There may be reasons why a risk should 
remain at a particular level e.g., it’s the level best placed manage it. 

2.6. Risk appetite  
The City Corporation’s Risk Management Policy outlines, its approach to 
taking risk (i.e., risk appetite) in that it will seek to minimise taking any 
unnecessary risks but also to reduce risk to an acceptable level to a public 
body. It also seeks to take risks to achieve its strategic /corporate 
outcomes/objectives, but these will be considered and well thought before 
such risks were taken. 

Risk appetite is defined as “the amount of risk and organisation is willing to 
accept” so by articulating how much and type of risks which is acceptable it 
provides a basis for making judgements on the balance of the benefits and the 
taking of the risk. 

Page 51



   

11 
 

The City Corporation has set risk appetite levels for ten categories of risk and 
these are be applied to all corporate risks. The following diagram shows 
relative risk appetites for each of these categories of risk.  

Risks which are scored in the shaded area would be regarded as above risk 
appetite.  

 

 

 

The risk appetite levels are indicative given the spread and complexity of risks 
within each category. These indicative risk appetite levels will be used for 
corporate risks only. 

For risks below corporate level, officers must have regard to the indicative risk 
appetite ratings above when determining whether to escalate or de-escalate a 
risk (see para 5 above).    

(Note: Risks which have the same current and target risk scores will be 
recorded as “accepted “in risk register reports. No target risk date is required 
in such circumstances. Detailed guidance is available on the risk management 
intranet site for officers who use the Pentana Risk system to generate risk 
reports.      

2.7. Effectiveness of the City Corporation’s risk management framework 
The City Corporation will periodically review the effectiveness of its risk 
management framework through either an external benchmarking exercise or 
review, internal audit review or self-assessment. The Policy and Strategy will 
be reviewed annually.  

Technology

Environmental

Physical Security

Reputational

1

Financial

2 3 4 6 8 12 16

1 -  Negligible 2 - Low 3 - Moderate 4 - High 5 - Very High

24 32

Innovation

Safeguarding

Health & Safety, Wellbeing

Contractual & Partnerships

Compliance & Regulatory

Page 52



   

12 
 

2.8. Roles and responsibilities 
The following sets of the roles and responsibilities of officers and groups 
within the risk management framework. 

Court of Common Council 

 To receive annual assurance from the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee on the effectiveness of the City Corporation’s risk 
management framework and its application. 

 

Audit and Risk Management Committee  

 Provide assurance to the Court of Common Council on the 
effectiveness of the risk management framework and its application. 
(The Chairman is the Member Risk Champion). 

 Review the effectiveness of risk management arrangements · Provide 
comment and challenge on risk management activity and progress. 

 

Grand Committees/Service Committees 

 Oversee the significant risks faced by Departments in the delivery of 
their service responsibilities. 

 

Executive Leadership Board (ELB) (This Board succeeds the former 
Summit Group – June 2021) Its role is to promote, steer and monitor risk 
management for the City Corporation. The ELB oversees the strategic 
elements of risk management:  

 Overall accountability for risk management across the City Corporation 
including ensuring the corporate risk register is a live and up to date 
record of the current risk exposure  

 Set the tone for risk management, promote the benefits of effective risk 
management and lead by example in embedding the risk management 
framework 

 Regularly discuss and review the corporate risk register and associated 
risk reports. 

 
Chief Officer Risk Management Group (CORMG) 

On behalf of ELB: 

 To review and scrutinise all Corporate and Red Departmental Risk 
Register on a quarterly basis or more regularly if required. 

 To assure the ELB that there are robust and effective risk mitigation 
strategies and actions in place to manage these risks. 

Page 53



   

13 
 

 To review any risk, which is recommended by a Chief Officer, to be 
added to the corporate risk register and make a recommendation to the 
ELB for inclusion/non-inclusion.  

 To receive suggestions made by the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee on areas of corporate risk that need further consideration.  

 To keep under review the outcome of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee Risk Challenge sessions and consider any wider corporate 
lessons learnt. 

Chamberlain (the City Corporation’s lead officer for risk management)  

 Overall leadership for the effective delivery of the City Corporation’s 
risk management function in accordance with industry best practice. 

 Ensure the risk management framework is aligned and embedded with 
the City Corporation’s approach to and disciplines for sound corporate 
governance and strong internal control. 

 Advice on the development of the City Corporation’s risk management 
framework 

 Review and sign off updates to the City Corporation’s risk management 
framework. 

 
Chief Officers  

(Extract from Financial Regulations 2021) 

Chief Officers must have regard to the requirements and /or guidance issued 
by the Chamberlain and adhere to the City Corporation’s Risk Management 
Policy and Strategy. 

Specifically, Chief Officers are responsible for: 

 Ensuring that risk management is integrated into business planning, 
programme and project management and finance planning. 

 Ensuring that there are appropriate management arrangements for the 
continuous identification, assessment, mitigation, monitoring and 
reporting of risk within the department. 

 Maintaining corporate and departmental, service, team risks on the 
corporate risk system and use system generated reports for 
management and Committee reporting purposes. 

 Reporting their corporate and departmental level risks to their relevant 
Committee(s) in accordance with the Guidance on reporting risk 
information to Grand/Service Committees. 

 Appointing a senior officer to act as the departmental risk co-ordinator 
to promote effective risk management within the department, liaise with 
the Corporate Risk Manager and ensures it complies with the City 
Corporation’s Risk Management Policy and Strategy. 

 Reducing the risk of significant service disruptions by ensuring that 
they have in place appropriate and robust business continuity plans. 

Page 54



   

14 
 

Departmental Management Teams (DMT) 

 Ensure adherence with the Risk Management Policy and Strategy  
 Champion the benefits of effective risk management 
 Take ownership for risks within their function and ensure risk registers 

are regularly discussed, reviewed, updated and escalated as 
appropriate 

 
Service Managers  

 Manage risks effectively in their service area, in accordance with the 
risk management framework 

 Ensure their staff have appropriate understanding and training on risk 
management 

 Champion the benefits of risk management across their service and 
communicate the corporate approach to managing risk. 

 Escalate serious risks to the departmental management team as 
appropriate. 

 Identify training needs; and 
 Take account of risk management issues when setting staff 

performance targets. 
 

Risk Management Group 

To assist in developing and embedding the City of London Corporation’s risk 
management framework, promoting the development of consistent and 
effective risk management across the organisation. This Group provides a 
forum to share best practice relating to the identification, monitoring and 
mitigation of risk. 
 

Departmental risk co-ordinators 

 Provide risk management support for their functions 
 Cascade, communicate and promote the risk management framework 

as directed by the Corporate Risk Manager to drive consistency across 
the organisation on the management of risk. 

 Attend Risk Management Group meetings. 
 Support updating of departmental risks on to the corporate risk 

management information system. 
 

Corporate Risk Manager ·  

 Embed the Risk Management Policy and Strategy and process to drive 
consistency in its application. 

 Develop guidance, tools and training to support the business to 
manage risk effectively in accordance with the risk management 
framework. 

Page 55



   

15 
 

 Provide support and training on the risk system and wider risk training. 
 Provide assurance, support and challenge to the business on all areas 

of business risk management. 
 Report on corporate and other risks to the Audit and Risk Management 

Committee and support the work of the Committee in its risk 
management role.  

 

Programme and project managers must:  

 Follow the Project risk management guidance which is now part of the 
Project Management Academy project. See SharePoint site. 

Risk owners must: 

 seek out relevant expertise to help in the assessment of risk and 
appropriate control measures. 

 review and report on the proximity and status of assigned risks. 
 identify risk action owners for implementing control measures; and 
 escalate risks to the departmental or corporate level as and when 

necessary. 
 

Risk action owners must: 

 Implement actions to control risks, drawing on the advice of relevant 
experts. 

 monitor risk and control measures; and 
 feedback on the progress in implementing controls and their 

effectiveness. 
 

Internal Audit is expected to: 

 use risk assessment to inform its annual audit plan. 
 carry out risk-based audits, evaluating controls and providing an 

opinion of levels of assurance. 
 carry out periodic audits to test the suitability and implementation of the 

risk management framework; and 
 make recommendations for improving risk management practices. 

 

Employees ·  

 understand the City Corporation’s approach to risk management. 
 make active and effective use of risk management in their work. 
 Suggest new risks to their managers 

 
  

Page 56



   

16 
 

SECTION 3 – Risk Management Process Guide 
 

3.1 Introduction 
This guide outlines the risk management process adopted and used by the 
City of London Corporation. It should be read in conjunction with the City 
Corporation’s Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy. 

This guide will be useful for all staff to gain an understanding of the City 
Corporation’s risk management process. For managers it should it help them 
to create some time and space to anticipate, plan effectively, act proactively 
and deliver on their objectives and report progress in managing risks to higher 
levels of management.  
 
It outlines the definitions of risk and risk management as well as explaining 
the five key steps in the cyclical risk management process, the tools that may 
be helpful in each step which includes the City Corporation’s risk matrix as 
well as a glossary of terms.   
 
This guide is supported by a range of tools and other resources on the 
SharePoint risk management site. 
 

3.2 Where and when should risk management be applied? 
Risk management can be applied to all business activities for example in 
setting strategic aims and objectives, organisational change, business 
planning, programme/project planning, options appraisals, procurement, 
commissioning, change programmes, improvements in services, projects and 
programmes. 

The appropriate risk management approach depends upon the importance of 
the planned business activity to the achievement of City Corporation 
outcomes/ departmental objectives. The more important the planned business 
activity the more rigorous and robust the risk management approach needs to 
be. 

The City Corporation’s risk management framework sets out the formal 
process for the application of risk management to business risks. 

 

3.3 The Risk Management process 
What is ‘risk’? Simply put a risk is a potential future event that could affect 
the delivery of one or more objectives. The City Corporation has adopted the 
following formal definition of risk5; 

“The effect of uncertainty on objectives” 

This guidance focuses on the uncertainties which potentially could have a 
significant impact on the achievement of the City Corporation’s objectives and 

 
5ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management 

Page 57



   

17 
 

the stakeholder’s confidence in the way the City Corporation delivers its 
services (i.e., the uncertainties that matter). 

In managing risk, the City Corporation seeks to minimise, though not 
necessarily eliminate, threats as well as maximise opportunities - (see the City 
Corporate’s Risk Management Policy). 

3.4 What is risk management? 
Risk management is an umbrella term for the identification, assessment and 
control of risk. The City Corporation have adopted the following formal 
definition6:  

“coordinated activities to direct and control an organization with 
regard to risk” 

Risk management is a cyclical five-step process that sets out to control the 
level of risk and to reduce its effects. 

The five-step risk management process is described briefly below but is set 
out in more detail later in this document. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig 1 – The Five Step Risk Management process 

3.5 Brief overview the steps in the risk management process 
Clarify objectives: Understanding the context of the planned business 
activity (e.g., objectives within a business plan) is the first step – the aim being 
to provide sufficient information on what needs to be achieved. This would 
include, for example, ensuring that the objectives are clear, agreed and 
understood by all stakeholders, determining the level of detail required by the 
risk process, the degree of risk (how much risk do we want to take) of the 
planned business activity and strategic importance. 

 
6 ISO 3100:2018 Risk Management  

Page 58



   

18 
 

Identify risks: This step involves identifying the risks that could adversely 
impact on the success of the planned business activity. Having clear and 
concise risk descriptions is essential for the following steps. 

Assess risks: The significance of the identified risks should be assessed so 
they can be prioritised. Assessment is undertaken using the City Corporation’s 
criteria for likelihood and impact (see appendix 3). 

Address: This step involves developing actions that will influence either the 
likelihood or impact (or both) of the risks occurring. These actions need to be 
appropriate, achievable and affordable. The risk should be modified as a 
result of the actions taken. 

Implement, Monitor and review: The identified actions must be 
implemented. Progress in managing risks as well as identifying new risks 
must to be assessed, monitored, and reviewed/reported regularly at 
management meetings and where appropriate at Committee meetings. If 
necessary, new risks and actions may be added and existing risks/actions 
removed. 

3.6 How to apply risk management 
This section provides guidance on the use of a risk management process that 
can be applied to activities at corporate, departmental, service and team 
levels within the City Corporation. 
.  
It needs to be applied sensibly and the level of risk management should be 
proportionate to the risks and the importance of achieving the planned 
objectives.  
 
The five-step risk management process is explained detail below together with 
the tools that would be useful and the key outputs from each step. 
 
To assist with a successful use of this process several tools have been 
produced. Information about each tool is included on the SharePoint Risk 
Management page. 
 
Step 1: Clarify Objectives 
 
It is difficult to think about risks in isolation, so the first step is to be clear about 
the objectives and key deliverables and other internal and external factors that 
may affect the delivery of the planned activity.  
 
 
This will include an understanding of: 
 

 The planned activity’s objectives and what success will look like. 
 The scope of the activity. 
 The assumptions that have been made. 
 The internal and external stakeholders and their relative influence 
 The external factors that might affect the planned activity 

Page 59



   

19 
 

 The City Corporation and its capabilities, as well as its objectives and 
strategies that are in place to achieve them. 

 

 
 
Reference to internal compliance documents such as financial regulations, 
contract regulations as well from external sources – regulations, best/ practice 
guidance, professional/industry standards etc may also be useful at this stage.  
 
The key output from this stage should be a clear understanding about the 
activity’s objectives, some of the key external and internal issues including 
stakeholder concerns and the likely risk management approach required. 
 
Step 2: Identify (and Analyse) risks 
 
The risk identification step is focussed on the risks (positive or negative) to 
achieving the planned activity’s objectives.  
 
Consultation is likely to be needed with staff/managers who have a good 
understanding of the business activity and other stakeholders, asking the 
following questions: 
 

 What might prevent the achievement of the stated objectives? 
 Has it gone wrong before? 
 Who should own this risk? 
 When should we start managing this risk? 
 How and when can the risk happen? 

 
It may also be helpful to think about the sources of the risk for example, the 
introduction of new legislation/regulation, budget savings, new technology, 
and new ways of working, may all give rise to risks. Using the headings as a 
prompt to think about the things that could get in the way will be a fruitful way 
to identify risks. 
 
An example prompt list to identify risks is set out below.  

Tools  
 
The tools that will be helpful include:   

 PESTLE (Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Legal and 
Environment) analysis (External risks) 

 SWOT (Strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats) analysis (internal 
risks). This will help highlight potential risk areas that need to be 
addressed. 

 Stakeholder Analysis - a method of identifying the key stakeholders and 
their influence over the planned activity. 

  

See the SharePoint risk management page for more information. 

Page 60



   

20 
 

 

 
 
Fig 2 – Example risk prompt list 
 
During the identification stage the following information needs to be gathered: 
 

 A set of risks that have been described clearly and plainly, using the 
cause, the ‘risk event’ and the potential effects statement. An example 
is set out below: 

 
Risk Title: Minibus fleet 

 
Cause: As a result of lack of capital funding to replace the ageing 
minibus fleet  

 
Risk event there is a risk that current vehicle reliability levels will fall in 
the next 12 months, 

 
Effects: leading to higher vehicle maintenance costs, increased 
pressure of revenue budgets, client service disruption and increased 
vehicle hire costs, 

 
 The nature of the risk – for example, political, financial, reputation, and 

more; and 
 The name of the individual taking responsibility for the risk (i.e., the risk 

owner). 

The key output is a list of risks (described in the cause- risk event -effect 
statement) produced that are aligned to the planned activities objectives and 
each with a named risk owner. Risks should be recorded on a risk register. 

Tools  
There are various tools that can be helpful identifying risks including horizon 
scanning, risk check lists, prompt lists, one to one interviews with key staff. 
See SharePoint - Risk Management page. 
 

Page 61



   

21 
 

The City Corporation uses a risk management information system to record 
and report its business risks. 
 
Step 3: Assess Risks (4x4) 
 
Every risk should be assessed to help determine how much management 
attention is given to managing the risk. This is done by ranking the risks with a 
set of scores determined by their individual likelihood (how likely is it for that 
risk to occur?) and impact (what is the consequence of the risk occurring?) 
rating. 
 
The City of London Corporation uses a 4-point scale and the multiple of the 
likelihood and impact give us the risk score, which is used to determine the 
risk profile. This is explained in the quick risk management guide on the 
Sharepoint risk management page   
 
Scoring risk is best done with those stakeholders who have a good 
understanding of the planned activity and coming to a consensus. Scoring 
risks in this manner can help avoid bias and improve ownership of the 
identified risks.    
 
Risks need to be scored based on current risk (i.e., the risk score as of today 
and considering existing controls) and target risk score (the target risk score 
to be achieved by a certain date after the completion of all related actions). 
Both risk (current and target) scores need to be added on the risk register. 
 
By plotting the current risk score on the risk matrix (Fig 3 below) it is the 
possible to determine a ranking by risk score of the identified risks. The more 
important the risk, the more management action will be required.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 62



   

22 
 

Fig 3 – The City Corporation’s risk matrix (see appendix 3) 
The red, amber and green (RAG) ratings have the following meanings: 
 

 Red - Urgent action required to reduce rating. 
 Amber - Action required to maintain or reduce rating. 
 Green - Action required to maintain rating 

 
 

 
The key outputs from this stage include a list of risks with a scored level of risk 
added to the risk register, and a consequent understanding of their relative 
priority for further action.  
 
Step 4: Address Risks 
 
Without this step, risk management would be no more than a bureaucratic 
process. Addressing risk involves taking practical steps to manage and control 
it. 
 
Not all risks need to be dealt with in the same way. The common risk 
responses are outlined below should help in considering the range of 
management responses available when responding to risks. 
 
Importantly, when agreeing actions to control risk, consideration is required on 
whether the actions themselves introduce new risks (i.e., consequential risks). 
 
Management responses 
 
When managing risks, the actions that are put in place should help to 
effectively reduce the risk to a manageable level. 
  
There are four approaches that can be taken when deciding on how to 
manage risks: 
 
 

Accept: 
An informed decision to accept the 
likelihood and consequence of a 
particular risk, e.g., the ability to do 
anything about some risk may be 
limited, or the cost of taking any 
action may be disproportionate to 
the potential benefit, or in terms of 
the City Corporation risk appetite 
the risk may be manageable.   

Transfer: 
Shifting the responsibility or burden for 
the loss to another party, e.g., through 
insurance.  Note this should be used with 
caution -- it is often impossible to transfer 
a risk entirely. This is particularly true 
where a service is outsourced. The 
operational and financial risks may lay 
with the contractor. In the event of poor 
service there may be a reputational 
impact on the City Corporation.  

Tools  
 
The key tool to use is the City Corporation’s risk matrix (see appendix 3). 
 

Page 63



   

23 
 

Avoid: 
 An informed decision not to 
become involved in a risk situation. 
For example -the City Corporation 
may not be out to avoid risks 
associated with its statutory 
functions. 

Reduce: 
 A selective application of management 
action, by applying internal control to 
reduce either the likelihood or the impact, 
or both, designed to contain risk to 
accept levels, e.g., mitigation action, 
contingency planning. 

 
In most cases, the chosen option will be Reduce. 
 
 
Identifying actions – Reduce option response 
 
All risks identified and assessed need to be reviewed to determine what 
actions need to be put in place to mitigate them (either to prevent them 
occurring or lessen the effect). 
 
There could be several actions identified for each risk – usually no more than 
4 or 5- which will help reduce the risk. Actions should be written as a SMART 
statement for inclusion in the risk register. For example: “Prepare a detailed 
communication plan for approval by the project manager by (insert date).” 
 
For each action there needs to be an action owner, that is someone 
responsible for one or more actions needed to mitigate the risk and to report 
on progress, usually to the risk owner. 
 
Effective risk management is taking well thought through risks and 
balancing them against the benefits and costs. 
 
 

 
The key outputs from this stage are that a completed risk register will have 
been produced showing the related actions to each risk with an identified risk 
owner. The register may also show where risks are complex and may require 
additional actions.  As a result, there will be an overall appreciation of the total 
risk exposure of the planned business activity.  
 
 
Step 5: Monitor, Review and Report 
 
The primary purpose of this stage is to ensure that the planned actions are 
implemented, monitored for effectiveness and corrective action is taken where 
responses do not match expectations.  
 

Tools  
The tool to be used in this process is the above table which shows the options 
for treating a risk and describing action using the SMART (Specific, 
Measurable, Achievable. Realistic and Time bound) statement. 
 

Page 64



   

24 
 

Both risks and the effectiveness of their related actions can and do change. 
It’s important to ensure that they are regularly reviewed and amended to meet 
the changing risk environment. New risks and actions may be required to 
address new threats identified at this stage.  
 
At the same time as reviewing the risks it can be helpful to check the 
corporate and departmental performance indicators as they can act as an 
early warning of a risk increasing or decreasing. 
 

 
The key outputs from this stage are that risks, and related actions have been 
thoroughly reviewed and amended as appropriate. This may result in some 
existing risks and actions being removed or new risks/actions being added. It 
also provides assurance that the actions, currently being undertaken, are 
effective and making good progress in line to the target completion date.  
 
In addition, the risk register has been reported in a timely manner to the 
appropriate levels of management and where appropriate to the relevant 
Grand/Service Committee. There is guidance for Chief Officers for reporting 
their corporate and departmental level risks to their appropriate Grand/Service 
Committee. 
 

References:  

This revised guide draws upon the City Corporation’s Risk Management 
Strategy 2014 as well as best practice and various internal and external 
publications including CoL financial regulations, the ISO Risk 
Management:2018, HM Orange Book (2004 and 2019/2020) and HM (OGC) 
Management of Risk 2010 and other public sector risk management guides.  
  

Tools  
The key tool will be the completed risk register together with the report format 
used for reporting risk information to senior management and where 
appropriate Grand/Service Committees. For more information about the 
Pentana Risk system for recording and reporting risks please contact the 
Corporate Risk Management on ext 1297. 

Page 65



   

25 
 

Glossary 
 
Acceptance - an informed decision to accept the likelihood and impact of a 
risk, e.g., the ability to do anything about some risks may be limited, or the 
cost of taking any action may be disproportionate to the potential benefit, or in 
terms of the City Corporation risk appetite, the risk may be manageable, 
 
Action owner – An action owner is the individual assigned for the 
implementation of the measures to mitigate the risk. They support and take 
direction from the risk owner. Action owners are responsible for: 
 

 reviewing and implementing controls assigned to them and updating 
progress on the risk register. 

 regularly reporting on progress to the risk owner via, for example, team 
meetings and/or one to one meeting or as required 

 
Avoidance - an informed decision not to become involved in a risk situation. 
(Note: The City Corporation may not be able to avoid risks associated with its 
statutory functions). 
 
Business risk - Failure to achieve business objectives/benefits 
 
Contingency plan(ning) - The process of identifying and planning 
appropriate responses to be taken when, and if, a risk occurs. 
 
Exposure - The susceptibility to loss. 
 
Frequency - A measure of likelihood expressed as the number of 
occurrences of an event in each time. 
 
Impact - Effect or consequence of a risk, should it occur e.g., time, cost, 
quality, reputation, financial loss, reputation etc 
 
Incident - An event or circumstance which could have or did lead to 
unintended and/or unnecessary harm to a person, and/or a complaint, loss or 
damage. 
 
Issue - A relevant event has happened, was not planned and requires 
management action. It could be a problem, query, concern, change request or 
risk has occurred. 
 
Likelihood - A qualitative description of a probability or frequency of the risk 
event occurring. 
 
Loss - A negative outcome. 
 
Mitigating action - Any controls or measures that seek to reduce the 
likelihood or impact of a risk event to an acceptable level. 
 

Appendix 1 

Page 66



   

26 
 

Opportunity - An uncertain event that could have a favourable impact on the 
objectives or benefits 
 
Planned (business) activity - a term to describe an activity (e.g., activities in 
a business plan) to which the risk management process is being applied. 
 
Programme - A set of projects and activities that are co-ordinated and 
managed as a unit such that they achieve outcomes and realise benefits. 
 
Project risks - Those which are concerned with delivering defined outputs to 
an appropriate level of quality within agreed time, cost and scope constraints. 
 
Reduction - A selective application of management action, by applying 
internal control to reduce either the likelihood or the impact, or both, designed 
to contain risk to acceptable levels, e.g., mitigation action, contingency 
planning. 
 
Risk - The effect of uncertainty on objectives 
 
Risk analysis - A systematic use of available information to determine how 
often specified events may occur and the magnitude of the impact. 
 
Risk appetite - an organisation’s unique attitude towards risk taking that in 
turn dictates the amount of risk that it considers acceptable in pursuit of its 
objectives. 
 
Risk assessment - The identification of risk, the measurement of risk, and 
the process of communicating about risks. 
 
Risk categories - Risks can be identified by category e.g., technological risks  
 
Risk cause: a description of the sources of the risk i.e., the event or situation 
gives risk to the risk. 
 
Risk effect: a description of the impact that the risk would have on the 
organisational activity should the risk materialise. 
 
Risk event: A description of the area of uncertainty in terms of the threat or 
opportunity  
 
Risk identification - The process, by which events, which could affect the 
organisation’s objectives, are identified, described and recorded. 
 
Risk management – Concerned with the “coordinated activities to direct and 
control and organization with regard to risk”. 
 
Risk management framework - Sets the context within which risks are 
managed in terms of how they will be identified, assessed, controlled and 
reported. 
 

Page 67



   

27 
 

Risk matrix - A model that visually displays the relationship between the 
likelihood and impact of specific risks. Visually it is a 4x4 box that plots 
likelihood and impact. (see appendix 3) 
 
Risk owner - is a role or an individual that is responsible for the management 
and control of all aspects of that risk, including the implementation of the 
measures taken to mitigate it. 
 
Risk prioritisation - The process that allows risks to be ranked into a logical 
order by establishing how significant they are in terms of likelihood and 
impact. 
 
Risk register - A record of all identified risks relating to corporate, 
departmental, service, programme or project objectives. 
 
Risk treatment - Selection and implementation of appropriate options 
for dealing with risk. 
 
RMIS - Risk management Information System. A web-based system that can 
record risks and action and produce reports (within the City Corporation – 
Pentana Risk). 
 
SMART – An action must be specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and 
time bound. 
 
Stakeholder - An individual, group or organisation that can affect, be affected 
by, or perceives itself to be affected, by a planned business activity. 
 
Target risk – The risk score that the organisation wishes to reduce the risk to 
(i.e., target risk score) after the completion of all related actions and achieved 
by a certain date. 
 
Threat – An uncertain event that could have a negative impact on objectives 
or benefits. 
 
Transfer - Shifting the responsibility or burden for the loss to another party, 
e.g., through insurance. Note this should be used with caution - it is often 
impossible to transfer a risk entirely. For example, if the risk to the City 
Corporation’s reputation, notwithstanding that a contractor is obliged to 
compensate the organisation financially for poor performance, the risk cannot 
be considered as well managed 
 
Uncertainty - A condition where the outcome can only be estimated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



   

28 
 

Appendix 2 
 

Characteristics of a corporate risks 
 

The Chief Officer Risk Management Group will assess potential new risks, 
using the following characteristics of a corporate risk, before determining 
whether to recommend to ELB that a risk should be added to the corporate 
risk register. 

A corporate risk is likely to have one or more of the following characteristics:  

 strategic and cross-cutting, with the potential to impact on a range of 
different areas or statutory functions.  

 related to the organisation’s ability to successfully deliver one or more 
high priority corporate objectives/outcomes (there needs to be a 
significant link to the outcome at risk).  

 affects the outcomes sought from one of the organisation’s major 
programmes.  

 operates over the medium or long-term; (note –occasionally short-term 
risks may be added where there is demonstrable business case)7  

 has the potential to seriously impact upon the organisation’s capacity, 
for example by limiting, reducing or failing to maximise financial, 
physical assets or human resources.  

 linked to the organisation’s ability to successfully deliver 
transformational change and major initiatives, while continuing with 
business as usual.  

 concerned with the wellbeing of the residents, businesses, the public 
and staff.  

 may impact significantly and broadly on the organisation’s reputation.  
 The speed of the impact(s) if the risk occurred on the organisation. 

 

 

Characteristics approved by Summit Group 19 December 2019 

 
7 Guide to short-, medium- and long-term time frames: Short term <1 year; Medium term 1-5 years and 
long term > 5 years 

Page 69



 

 
 

 

29 

Appendix 3  Corporate Risk Matrix   

P
age 70



Committee(s): 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & 
Drama Audit and Risk Management Committee 
 

Dated: 
 
06/07/2021 

Subject: Safeguarding Assurance Public 
 

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate 
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?  

 

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or 
capital spending? 

N 

If so, how much? £ 

What is the source of Funding? N/A 

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the 
Chamberlain’s Department? 

N/A 

Report of: Lynne Williams, Principal  For Information  

Report author: Alison Mears Director of Guildhall 
Young Artists and Safeguarding 
 

 
Summary 

 
This report is in response to a request to update members of the committee about 
safeguarding assurance at the School.  
 

 
 

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to note the report. 
 
 

Main Report 

 

We aim to create a proactive safeguarding culture through close management 
oversight, a supportive structure of designated safeguarding staff, strong partnership 
working, training and awareness. 
 
Safeguarding is a standing item at Board of Governors meetings and Senior 
Management Team meetings. There are two Safeguarding Governors who meet on 
a termly basis with key safeguarding staff.  The Safeguarding policy is revised on an 
annual basis and brought to the Board for approval at the start of the academic year 
along with the Annual Report. 
 
Reporting of concerns is encouraged whether or not they meet safeguarding remit. 
The Head of Safeguarding is a former LADO and proactive in training and raising 
awareness across the institution. There is a network of Designated Safeguarding 
Leads (DSLs) for each area of the School. In addition, we are involved in 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



safeguarding discussions within the Conservatoire sector and have recently signed 
up to a joint CUK safeguarding declaration. 
 
The only statutory reporting required for Safeguarding is the Prevent Annual return 
which is submitted to the Office for Students (formally HEFCE). All submissions have 
reached the required outcome which demonstrate that we have provided sufficient 
evidence of “due regard to the Prevent duty”. Additionally, in 2017 we were invited to 
present at a HEFCE “Prevent – What works” event as an example of sector leading 
practice. 
 
The following is a record of recent audit reports to the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee and other relevant monitoring and external oversight.  
 
Three Audit and Risk Management Committee deep dives in recent times: 

• February 2019 Safeguarding and Prevent 

• April 2019 GYA Regional Centres including safeguarding 

• May 2019 Norwich Centre for Young Musicians 
 
Other external oversight: 

• Report to the Chief Officers Risk Management Group in February 2019 

• City Family of Schools Safeguarding Review March 2019 

• City and Hackney Safeguarding Children Partnership CHSCP Covid19 
assessment October 2020 

• CHSCP Safeguarding Self-Assessment November 2020 

• City Internal Audit (Guildhall Young Artists and Safeguarding)  April 2021 

• Safeguarding Assurance document for Andrew Carter in May 2021  
(Appendix 1) 

 
The City internal audit team have not examined safeguarding across the institution 
but only specifically in the Guildhall Young Artists context where the feedback was 
positively received. I am always keen to develop a programme of continual 
improvement for safeguarding so would be happy to participate in an internal 
safeguarding audit for the whole institution. However, as we are a small team and 
the same staff will be involved, I would ask that this takes place later in the next audit 
cycle if this is agreed as a sensible way to proceed. 
 
We are proactive in assessing the work we do have received positive comments 
from stakeholders. A recent Guildhall Young Artists survey to parents and students 
saw a 5/5 rating for the quality of safeguarding service from those who use it. 
Professional colleagues have also commented on the quality of our safeguarding 
work: 
 
 “I wanted to get in touch to thank you for your recent Prevent referral. It has been 
noted at various meetings by our departmental managers that you have done an 
excellent job with the referral itself and also with the background work you completed 
in the lead up to you contacting us. It hasn’t gone unnoticed.” Prevent and Channel 
Officer, City of London Police 
 
Safeguarding will always remain a high risk for any institution particularly for 
Guildhall School with the largest provider of under 18 music education in the sector. 

Page 72



Although we have received positive feedback from a number of sources there is no 
complacency and we welcome further input to help us in this important area of work. 
 

 
Appendix 1 – Safeguarding Assurances Report to City of London Corporation  

May 2021 
 

This report is exempt by virtue of the paragraphs 1 & 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. All sections of the report contain sensitive information which may be exempted 
under the Act, and as this cannot be presented to Members as a separate appendix this report needs 
to be considered in closed session. It is considered that information falling under the following 
paragraphs outweighs the public interest in disclosing information:  

2 Information that is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 

 
 
Alison Mears 
Director of Guildhall Young Artists and Safeguarding  
E:alison.mears@gsmd.ac.uk 
T: 020 7382 7160 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Draft Workplan for the Committee
	5 Internal Audit Update
	Appendix 1 2020_21 Finalised Audit Outcome for submission
	Appendix 2 2021_22 Finalised Audit Outcome for submission
	Appendix 3 Internal Audit Work 2021-22 July 2021 for submission
	Appendix 4 GSMD Open High Priority Recommendations - July 2021 for submission

	6 City of London Corporation Risk Management Policy and Strategy 2021
	CoL RM Policy and Strategy 100621 Officer circulation (002)

	7 Safeguarding Assurance
	11 Non Public Minutes
	12 Safeguarding Assurance (Non-Public Appendix)
	13 Risk Register
	Appendix 1 - Summary risk register
	Appendix 2 - Risks and actions progress report
	Appendix 3 -  Detailed Departmental Risk Register


